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INDEPENDEI.{T AUDITOR'S,REPORT

Thc Honorable Mayor and City Commissiox
City of Hawtlrcrne, Flor.ida

We llave a dited the acco,nparying fitnDcial statcmetrts ofthe govcnrnental activilies.
ue business-type Activities, $e major fu[ds, and the aggrcgate rcrnaiui|lc funJ
information of the City ofHaMhomq Florida, (city; as ofand iorihc fiscalyeariended
September 30, 2014, al)d 2013 which collectivcly conpriso tlrc City's basic financinl
statoDents as listed ilr the table ofcontgnts.

M.mgomolt is rgsponsibls for tho prcpaRtion ald fd presentation of tlrose financiol
statcrnelts itl accordancc with tccounli[g principles gcnerally accepted in thc U[itcd
Starcs of Amcrico; This includes lhc design, implemc t{rion, a|ld ntaintcl)ancc of
intierml coDtrol rolevdnt to thc preptratioD and fair UesoDtation of fimuoial statomelts
lhst are free fiotn natori0l misstatgnrent, whother duc to ftaud or e$or,

Our responsibility is to express opilions o[ these financial statemgnts lrasod o[ anr audit,
We co,lduotcd our audit i| accordAncc with auditilg standalds gc,rerally accepted i[ the
United Statcs of Arnerict, nnd the standrrds applicablc to lilaucial audits contaiued in
GovenD\ent Audithtg Slatnlard,r issued by tho Cothptrollcr Ccneml ofthc United Stntes.
Thosc staldards requirc that wc plafl a[d perform thc a[dit to obtain leasolablc
assutance about whgtlter dlg linanoial stateDeuts aro froo ofNaterial misstdtament,

A[ audit involves perfonning proocdurcs to obtain audit evidoDoo about the amounts and
disllosurcs iD the financial statement$. The proccdurcs selectcd depend otl the auditor's
ludgment, including lhc assessmcnt oftlrc risks of material misslatemcnt ofthe finanoial
statonrs s, vhether due to fraud gr enor. In making those d$k assessmgDts, the auditor
conside$ infemal coDtlcl rclevdnt to the ellity's prepahtion and fir prosentation of tho
financial statements in older to design audit procedures thar are ippropriate irr tlre
circumslances, but not for dlc purposo ofcxprcssing all opinion ofthe cffectivcness ofthe
entily's i tern.l control. Accordirgly, we expross no suob opinion. An audit also
iroludcs evoluatirg rhg applopriatoDoss of accounting poiicies used and the
reasonabletess of significant accounting estinlatqs ,nade by managemelt, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation oflho financial statements. We bejieve thal le audit
evide ce we Iiavc obtained is sufficient and nppropriato to Fovido a basis for our audit
opilions.

4432 NW 23rd Avo., Suite 8 Gain6ville, FL 32606 352€36-100i tet 352336-4382 la ww,5*tonand*hndt.6m



lo our opinion, the financial stateme[ts refered to above presgnt fairly,. irl all lnatgrial
respeots, th€ respe4tive financial position of the goverDeental agtivities, the business_
type activities, thc major funds, and tho aggregate remaining fund informatio[ ofthe City
ofHaMhomg Flodda, as ofSeptenber30,2014 and 2013 and the respective chanses in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof, for the year theu enJed in
alcorddnce with accoulting prinoiplcs gerorally aecepted in t]r€ United Statcs of

Accounting principles getcrally acc€pt€d in tho Unit€d Saatcs ofAnerica r€quirc ftat tlrc
nalagqnent's discussion ald analysis aud budgetary conparison ifomadol be
preselted to suirplenent thc basic finanoial statements. S ch infoflnatiou, although not a
part of the basic filaucial statements, is required by the Governmental Ac;untins
StaMards Boald, who considers it to be an essentialpart offinancial reporling for placirr!
the basic financiol statements in an f,ppropriate opemtioMl, ecolomic, or hiitorica-i
context. We have applicd cert0in Iinritcd procedurcs to tho rcquircd suDDlcmentarv
iufornation in accordance with audithg standards generally acccpted iu the tiiit"O Stutu!
of A erica, which consisted of inquiries of managenent abo[t the mothods of preparinc
the itfonnation aad conparing tlrc infornlatioD for co sistency with managemonti
rcspo,rses to our inquirios, the basic finnnciol statcments, and Other khowtcdae we
obtailed during our {udit ofthe basic finanoial s&femcnts. wo do not expasr un olinion
or providg any oss{[h0e9 or| dlo idomation be4also tho limited ffocedlfes do tot
providc us with sufficicnt evideDce to express a|l opinioD or provide 0Iy assuunce.

Oor ludit was conductcd for tlle purposo of forori[g opitliorN on tho linnnoid stoto'nelts
thst collectivoly comprisethe City ofHawtlDrue, Florida,! fi[anoial statemonts,

Tle gombi|ling and individ[nl no[.major fund finnncial statemsnts ond the sclladule of
expenditures of fedgral ow{rds fl{o tho rcsponsibility of maMgoDre[t lnd werc derivod
frorn a d rolate directly to tho (ndcrlyiDg accountiDg and othor rccords used to prepare
thc basic financi.l st.tcme[ls, Such i0fofln4tiol has been subiccrcd to the auditinp
procedures applied in the audit of tho basic financial slatcment ;0t certail additionj
procedures, inchding compari g ar)d rccolciling such it)foflMtion directly 10 the
underlyi[g acco[Dting and other records used to prepars the basic fi[anci0l st{rtetnoltts or
to the bnsic finanqial statenelts thgDselvss, aM olher addition.l Drocedurcs iI
aocordance with auditing standards gencmlly acccpted in thc United SraG ofAnrericl,
I[ o|tr opinion, the combiniug.a[d individ{al non.mojor fund finarcial statemetts ald tle
sohcdulq of expanditures of federal awards aro fairly shted in all material rospeols ill
rolation to 1lle basic fiDancial statome ts as a lvhole.

The introd ctory and statistioal sections have not been subjected to the auditinq
procedures applied in the andit of lhc basio financial statencnts and, accordingly, we do
not express an opiniol or prcvido any assurance on lhem.



In accordalce }vith Gorem ent Auditing Sldndqtds, we have also issued our report date_d
May Il,2015, on ou consideration ofth€ City ofHawthome, Flo dars internb rontlol
overinancial r€porting and.on our tests of lh.conpliance witb.certah pro!.isions of lan s,
regulatlons, oontlacts, and grant agreements and othgr matters. The puroose oflhat reDort
is to describe the scope ofour testing of internal connol over finatrcl;l reportine oi on
compliance. That report is a! integal palt of an audit performed in accordarde witll
Governuent Auditing Srand?rdr fu consideri[g the City of Hawthorn€, Florida's internal
oonaol overfirancial rcporting,and conpliance.

),wlotl JU^"lt
SEXTON & SCHNOLL
Certifi ed Public Accounta0ts
May I1,2015

-&
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE. FLORIDA
Management's Discussion and Analysis

September 30,2014

The management of the City of HaMhorne, Florida (Ciry) offers readers of the City's financial
statements this narative overview and analysis ofthe financial activities of the City for the fiscal year
oodcd September 30, 2014. This discussion and analysis is designed to assist dre reader in focusing on
significant financial issues, provide an overview of the City's financial activities and identifl, changes
in the City's financial position. It is intended to be an easily readable analysis of the City's financial
activities based on cunently known facts, decisions or conditions. This analysis focuses on cunent year
activities and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements that follow.

Fi ancidl Eighlights

, The assets ofthe Cily exceeded its liabilities at the close offiscalyear 2014 by $9,I16,040.

, 8% ofthe City's net assefs represent resources that are dedicated or subject to restriction on how
they may be used. The balance of unrestricted net assets is $466,162. These unreskict€d net
assets may be used to meetthe City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

, The City's total net assets decreased 5216,450 or zyo over the year, which was primarily the
result ofreduced grants for capital expenditures.

, '73o/o of the City's net assets reflect its investment in capital assets (land, buildings,
infrastructure, and equipment) less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets.
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in i1s capital assets is reported
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to Iiquidate
these liabilities.

Revenues from Governmental Activities increased by $71,066 from the previous year. G€neral
revenues ftom taxes were relatively flat.

Business-type activities (the City's enteryrise funds) operating revenues decreased by $27,064.
Charges for services increased slightly.

The City's total debt, including bonds decreased by $ 88,669 or 32% in the cuffent fiscal year.
The City executed a new promissory note with the National Rural Water Association for
$75.000.

-t 0-



 

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA 

              Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2014 

 

City Highlights 

 As of September 30, 2014 the unemployment rate for Alachua County was 4.9%.  The 2013 

rate was 5.4% and reflects the current economic conditions of the country.  According to the 

U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, the State of Florida’s unemployment rate 

was 5.8%.  The National Unemployment rate was 5.7%. 

 

 The official population of the City according to the 2010 Census was 1,142 and is estimated to 

be approximately the same in 2014. 

 
 The ad valorem tax millage rate for the City was 5.3194 mills in 2014.  

 

 Little Orange Creek Nature Park has opened to the Public through special use permits. Master 

plan engineering has been completed and improvements will continue. Support organizations 

have been actively seeking grants and donations for those improvements.  

 

 Lindsey Phillips Park upgrades are also continuing. These include boat ramp improvements, 

and ADA accessibility improvements.   

 

 Plum Creek and Envision Alachua have conducted community workshops for economic 

development and conservation.  Through this process, a broad cross section of the community 

representing environmental, education, and business interest discuss in the Sector plan holding 

at least 15,000 conservation acres. The Sector plan was submitted to Alachua County but 

withdrawn for additional changes. Plum Creek anticipates re-submitting the Sector Plan to the 

County in June of 2015. Approximately 1,300 acres is adjacent to the City of Hawthorne. The 

City has had preliminary discussions with Plum Creek which has expressed interest in annexing 

the property into the City to develop and market the property for commercial operations.  

 

 The City completed the transfer of the Hawthorne Fire Station to the Alachua County Board of 

County Commissioners to bring fire and rescue services back to the City of Hawthorne, and 

during 2014 are upgrading the city’s existing fire station for a storm-ready structure. Alachua 

County Fire Rescue will move station #25 to the building in 2015 when renovations are 

complete.  

 

 Love’s Travel Plaza has purchased property on US 301 in Hawthorne and will bring a Travel 

Plaza, truck stop, tire-changing shop and a McDonald’s Restaurant to the City. The City 

Commission will apply for an economic development grant to facilitate a larger water line to 

the property for fire suppression. Construction of the water line and Travel Plaza are slated for 

2015. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

-11- 



CITY OF EAWTHORM, FIORIDA
Management's Discussion and Alalysis

SeDtember 30. 2014

OVERWEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended 10 se e as an inhoduotion to the City's basic financial
statements.Thgyarecomprisedofthreecomponents:1)govemment-widefinancialstatgments,
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to finanoial statements. The report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

The City has implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34, Basic
Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments.
This statement requires governmental entities to report finances in accordance with specific guidelines.
Among those guidelines are the components ofthis section dealing with managements discussion and
analysis. Besides this Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), the report consists of
government-wide statements, fund financial statements, and the notes to the financial statements. The
first two stat€ments arc condensed and present a govemment-wide view of the City's finances. Within
this view, all City operations arc categorized as applicable, and reported as either governmental or
business-type activities. Governmental activities include basic services such as police, fire control,
public works, pafts and recreation, community development and general gov€fimental administration.
The City's water, sewer, and solid waste management seruices are reported as business-type activities.
These government-wide statements are designed to be morc corporate-like in that all activities ar€
consolidated into a total for the City.

Govemmentvide Financial Stalentenls

' The Government-Wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview ofthe City's finances, in a manner similar to a private sector business, in that all
governmental and business-type activities are consolidated into columns which add up to a total
for the primary government.

, The Statement ofNet Assets focuses on rcsources available for future operations. ln simple
terms, this statement presents a snap-shot view of the assets the City owns, the liabilities it
owes and the net diff€rence. The net difference is further separated into amounts restricted for
specific puposes and unrestdcted amounts. Governmental activities refl€ct capital assets
including infrashucture and long-term liabilities. Business-type activities also include capital
assets and long-term liabilities. All activities are reported on the accrual basis ofaccounting.

, The Statement ofActivities focuses on gross and net costs ofthe Cityis programs and the extent
to which such progEms rely upon general tax and other revenues. This statement summarizes
and simplifies the user's analysis to determine the extent to which programs are self-supporting
and./or subsidized by geneml revenues.

, Govemment-wide financial statements can be found on Daees 19 to 22.

-t2-



CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA
Matragement's Discussion and Analysis

SeDtember 30.2014

F und Fittancial Stdternents

Fund financial statements focus separately on governmental and prop etary funds. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments,
usgs 1lnd accounting to ensure and demonstratg compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds ofthe City can be divided into two categori€s: Covernmertal and
Proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental fund statements follow the more traditional Dresentation offinancial statements. The
City has three governmental funds, the Ceneral Fund. Communiry Redevelopment and Capital
Assets which are combined into a single aggregated presentation. Unlike the government-wide
financial statements, govemmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and
outflows of spondable resources as well as on the balance of spendable resources available at the
end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a go\/emment's ear-term
fi nancing requirements.

Covernmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 23 through 25.

Propdetary Funds

The City's proprietary funds, or enterprise funds, are used to report the same functions presented as
business-type activities in the governmentwide financial statements. The City uses enterprise
funds to account for its Water, Sanitation, Cemetery and Sewer opemtions.

Proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 26 through 29 ofthis report.

Notes to Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements can be found on pages 30 through 50 ofthis report.

In addition to the basic and fund financial statemenb and notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concemilg the City's budget compliance.

-t3-



 

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA 

               Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

    September 30, 2014 

Statement of Net Assets 

 

The following table reflects a condensed Statement of Net Assets: 

  
  

 

The largest portion of the City’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets ($7,891,891) such as 

land, buildings and equipment.  Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of 

related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other 

sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate liabilities.  

The City uses these capital assets to provide services to the citizens:  consequently, these assets are not 

available for future spending.  An additional $758,023 represents resources that are subject to external 

restrictions on how they may be used.  

Total net assets balance decreased by $216,451 or 2.3% over the previous year.    

 
 Statement of Activities 

 

 The following schedule presents the revenues and expenses for the current and prior years: 
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Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities 2014 2013

Cash and cash equivalents 646,790$       543,832$       1,190,622$   910,846$         
Other assets 1,090,915      1,563,675      2,654,590     1,983,400         
Capital Assets 6,362,479      4,202,302      10,564,781   11,080,713       
Total Assets 8,100,184      6,309,809      14,409,993   13,974,959       

Other current liabilities 586,599        1,213,821      1,800,420     1,616,953         
Long term outstanding -                  3,493,534      3,493,534     3,025,516         
Total Liabilities 586,599        4,707,355      5,293,954     4,642,469         

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
     net of related debt 6,362,479      1,529,412      7,891,891     8,368,653         
Restricted 516,257        241,766        758,023       615,895           
Unrestricted 634,849        (168,724)       466,125       347,942           
Total net assets 7,513,585$    1,602,454$    9,116,039$   9,332,490$       

Total Government



 

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA 

               Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2014 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-15- 

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities 2014 2013

Revenues:

Program revenues

    Charges for services 21,574$      761,243$     782,817$    808,974$         

    Grants and contributions -                -                 -               801,378          

General revenues

     Taxes 588,051      588,051     580,994          

     Tax increment 60,987        60,987       61,124            

     State shared revenues 48,935        48,935       48,088            

     Interest 4,853          2,370           7,223         6,967              

     Miscellaneous 176,270      27,148         203,418     133,270          
Total revenues 900,670      790,761       1,691,431   2,440,795        

Expenses:

     General government 441,626      -                 441,626     426,023          

     Public safety 3,239          -                 3,239         3,239              

     Transportation 169,626      -                 169,626     170,508          

     Economic environment 44,658        -                 44,658       54,872            

     Culture & recreation 173,949      -                 173,949     120,560          

     Interest on long-term debt 1,030          121,049       122,079     124,151          

     Cemetery 11,961         11,961       6,721              

     Water 173,631       173,631     161,974          

     Garbage services 184,939       184,939     187,421          

     Sewer 582,172       582,172     635,463          
Total expenses 834,127      1,073,752     1,907,880   1,890,932        

Changes in net assets 66,543        (282,991)      (216,448)    549,864          

Transfers -                -                 -               -                    

Beginning net assets 7,447,045    1,885,445     9,332,490   8,782,626        

Ending net assets 7,513,588$  1,602,454$   9,116,042$ 9,332,490$      

Total Government

Change in Net Assets

For the Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013



 

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA 

               Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2014 
 

Current Year Impacts on Revenue and Expense 

 

Revenues - The City’s tax revenue was $588,051, representing an increase of 1.2% from 2013.  State 

Revenue Sharing increased marginally by $847 or 1.7%. Enterprise Funds services revenue were stable.  

Total City revenues decreased $749,364, or 31% compared to 2013, primarily due to cessation of 

Federal Grants. 

 

Expenses - Governmental activities expenses increased $57,579 (7%), while enterprise fund activity 

expenses decreased by $41,978 (3.7%). 

 

Capital Assets  

 

 
 

 

The City’s net investment in capital assets for the governmental activities decreased by $515,931 or 5% 

from the prior year. The City added $20,426 of minor equipment and sold land to the Florida 

Department of Transportation with carrying value of $24,121. Depreciation expense was $ 505,589, an 

increase of 2% from the prior year. 

 

 

Long-term Debt 

 

At the end of the fiscal year, the City had total long-term debt outstanding in bonds and notes payable 

of $2,695,558, which is a decrease of $188,669 from the previous year, a combined effect of principal 

payments and additional promissory note from the National Rural Water Association.  
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2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Land 4,620,928$   4,645,050$ 114,300$      114,299$    4,735,228$   4,759,349$   

Buildings 1,136,579     1,136,579   4,998,574     4,998,574   6,135,153     6,135,153

Improvements 1,841,357     1,841,357   5,586,596     5,586,596   7,427,953     7,427,953

Equipment 202,984        207,394      70,788          52,598        273,772        259,992

Subtotal 7,801,848     7,830,380   10,770,258   10,752,068 18,572,106   18,582,447   

Accumulated depreciation (1,439,368)    (1,357,963)  (6,567,955)    (6,143,771)  (8,007,323)    (7,501,734)    

Capital assets, net 6,362,480$   6,472,417$ 4,202,303$   4,608,297$ 10,564,783$ 11,080,713$ 

Total Activities  Activities

Capital Assets at September 30, 2014 and 2013

Governmental Business-type



 

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA 

               Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

     September 30, 2014 

 

 
 

 

More detailed information on the City’s long-term liabilities is presented in the notes to the financial 

statements.  

 

Budgetary Highlights 

 

The City’s FY budget for 2014 was adopted in September, 2013 and amended in October,
 
2014.  Under 

Florida Statute 166.241(4), the governing body of a municipality may amend a budget within 60 days 

following the end of the fiscal year.  Accordingly, the Commission approved an amendment to the 

budget to include Grant Funding from the State of Florida for the Wastewater Treatment Plant 

improvements. There were no other changes to the FY 2013 budget.  A comparison to actual results can 

be reviewed in supplementary information beginning on page 51. 

 
Financial Contact 

 The City’s financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, 

 investors and creditors) with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s 

 accountability.  If you have any questions about the report or need additional financial information, 

 please contact the City Manager at P.O. Box 1270, Hawthorne, Florida 32640. 
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2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Line of credit 36,084$        48,551$      -$                36,084$        48,551$        

USDA bonds -                    -                  2,319,300     2,373,900   2,319,300     2,373,900     

Loans Payable 12,996        392,759        445,123      392,759        458,119        

Total bonds and notes 36,084$        61,547$      2,712,059$   2,819,023$ 2,748,143$   2,880,570$   

Activities  Activities Total 

Governmental Business-type
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CITY OF HAWTIIORND, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
S€ptember 30,2014

Govemmental Business-type 20t4

TOTAL

20t3

TOTAL
ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net

Due flom other funds

Due from other governm€ntal unir

Total Current Assets

Restricted assets:

Cash

s 432,599

180,611

1,492,454

'758,023

758,023

939,28',7

3,820

12,211

t0,564,182

$ 130,534

r 13,210

26,207

s 302,065

67401

1,492,454

294,951

187,583

906,775

32,154

269,950 1,861,920

241,766

t,42t,463

516,257

Total Restricted Assets

Non"cunent assets:

Due ftom other funds

Bond costs, net

Prepaid Expenses

Capital assets, net

Total non-cunent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Cunent liabilities (payable ftom

cuffent assets):

Accounts payable

Due to other firnds

Defered Revenue

Lin€ of credit

Loans payable-current portion

516,257

939,281

t2,2t1
6,362,479

7,3t3,977

8,100,184

24t,766 6r5,895

3,820

4,202,303

853,067

3,821

I1,080,713

I l,r3?.60r

13,974,959

4,206,123 I t,520,100

6,309,809

22,558

5\9,212

22,667

22,162

25,221

969,803

18,8t0

62,483

1,788

47,7't9

1,489,015

r8,810

22,661

62,483

23,950

39,362

1,334,149

1,281

36,084

54,53',7

23,948
Total current liabiliti€s (payable ftom

Cunent liabilities (payabie ftom

restricted assels):

Accrued interest payable

Deposits

586,599 1,078,105 't,664,703

9,431

66,685

59,600

9431
66,685

59,600

943\
60,461

57,500Bonds payable-current portion

Total cunent liabilities (payable from
restricted assets)

.19-

ll5,7t 7 \35,717 t2'7,392



CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT Otr NET ASSETS
September 30, 2014

Govemmental

Activities

Business-type

Activities

20t4
TOTAL

20t3

TOTAL
Non-curent liabilities:

Loans payable

Due to other funds

Bonds payable

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

NETASSETS

lnvested in capital assets,

net of relat€d debt

Restricted net assets

Unrestrict€d net assets

Total net assets

348,608

942,726

2,202,200

3,493,534

4,707,3ss

348,608

942,',726

2,202,200

338,223

425493

2,261,800

3,025,516

4,642,469

3,493,534

586,599 5,293,9s4

$ 7,513,585 $ 9,116,039

634,479
5t6,257

634,850

1,529,4t2

24t,766

(t68,724)

$ 1,602,454

7,891,89r

758,023

466,126

8,368,653

615,895

s 9,332A90
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.i o i e ^- al el : - 6 - l-lall
+ ;+<i-t +t +, + ri dt-itdtl

- | 
"t -1 t"tltttt*tl

-j -j ci + cj -jt .jt -..j -.i .n cj -jt ^it;tl:" | -I:il

-j -.i .{ Rr _jt .it.itl
"-l-l-tl

tttltl-tl

F.ll

;ll

s€e 
=e€E 

,. . s;-$rE.=!e*8,: s BgE
iES9Ett;EiBsns;gE
EgE;EnEE3 gEsE;EEE

vltl

atl

;ll

.-i .-r d {. !i .-al .i.l

- t'1
tl

x

t-
I

t--.-..t.1
!I €" N" €- €- o\ o^t -"15l ? - e $ R -l gl--t-l
',rt | |tl

F

sl
:l
4l

FJ

vl

;l
qt

;l
9l
;l

6.9

6<o

'4d

.EE

^*-

I

!J .,)i

Ei iiz Yx
:J Xg

a =EE 4A

> dFE b9
O9



.ll
a.tl

*ll
dl oid

l.d
I

6 t - 4 6 N -t-l
.j F -.: ...i + oj o r rilodl .o ..i_ Nl6l rJ "_1tltltl

o 6l €l i ' o
..I .-i| v.i| o: *{

tltltl

6ir -.ivat<t+ol ol .o F
- -t6t "i"tl

tt

6

(,

*l

dl

:l

-l
dl
;l
.jl
-l

"9,* *E!=2 s - & F

9oH'E€FE* 3E a E i
lf,iEi€E;g,+I i C E

tF*e=€sE;E!# 6gg E
b d rd E ) o i ,i6 F € : ii gE: t

! c.l

4 =Z

^ 
/'1 ci

a ki
z trgd >=
Y FY
s <d

F E6



CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

GOVERNMENTAL FUND
BALANCE SHEET

September 30, 2014 and 2013

20t4 2013

ASSETS

Cash

Due ffom oth€r funds

Due froD other govehmental units

LIABILITIES AND FUND BAI-ANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounls payable and accrued liabililies

Accru€d compensation

Toral Liabilities

IUND BALANCES

Libmry

Downtown dcvelopment

Reserved Wild Spaces Public Spaces

Interfund rcceivable

Toral Liabiliries and Fund Balance

646,790

12,273

939,287

100,937

26,207

t2.2tl

493,193

8,165

853,06?

I18,r37

32.t54

t.737.705 1,504.?16

22,558

519,2t2

22,667

22,t62

15,534

456,309

36,084

22,161

455

464,617

t42,t38
1,300,592

(756,696)

586,599 530,088

455

400.743

t42.138
853,067

(42t,775)

974.628

_-q_____tMlt!_

974,628

l.t5l.l07

l-731.105

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Covemmenbl Funds to the Statement of Net Assets

Fund balance"Governmenial Funds

Amounr fepon€d for govemmental aclivities in rhe

shtem€nt of net assels de different because:

Capihld\els used in govemmenkl acliviries are nor

financial resources and therefore are not reported

in the eovemmental funds.

Long-term liabilities de not drc in the cun€nt period

and thereforc are not rcported in the tunds

Net asseti of govemenlal activiiies

l,l5l,t 07

6,362,479 6,552,427

(t2,994\

:23-

$ 7,513,585 $ 7.514.061



CITY OF IIAWTHORNE, FIORIDA

GOVERNMENTAL TUND
STATEMENT OF RXWNTIES. DCENDITI]RES AND

CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the Fiscat Year End€d SeDtember 30,2014 and 2013

2014 2013

REVENUE

Taxes

Intergovemmental revenue

Charges for seflices

Oth€r revenue

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES

Cuffent Expenditures

Cen€ral govemment

Public safefy

Transponadon

Economic environment

Culture/recreation

Capital outlay(disposals)

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditrires

Net changes in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning ofyear

Fund balances, end ofyear

588,05r

109,922

21,5',74

181,122

900,669

580,994

109,212

20,667

I18,731

829,604

427,690-

t39,394

44,658

134,333

(21,885)

724,t90

116,419

708,184

t21,420

t21,420

853,208

s 974,628

418,302

| 41,315

54,872

80,943

9,513

t'76,479

974,628

_!________lJ!_lJ!L

-24-



2014 2013

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 176,479$      121,420$     

   Amount reported for governmental activities in the 

   statement of activities is different because:

     Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.

     However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those 

     assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as

          Capital purchase expenditure 2,236        

          Disposal of Land to FDOT (24,122)     

          Less current year depreciation (88,052)     

(109,938)       (80,011)        

   Repayments of loan principal are expenditures in the 

   governmental funds but the repayment reduces long-term 

   liabilities in the statement of net assets.

         Principal payments on long-term debt 12,467          25,462         

   Some expenses reported in the statement of activities 

   do not require the use of current financial resources

   and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 

   in governmental funds

   

        Compensated Absences (12,468)         (12,468)        

Change in net assets of governmental activities 66,540$        54,403$       

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TO  THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014

-25-



ASSETS

Cunent assets

Ac@unls eeivable (ne1 of
auowec€ for uncollectible)
Due ftom other tunds

C.sh

Buildings
Inprovements other than buildings

Conslrclion in progress

Allowmce for depreciation

Accunuhled amonization-bond costs

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Curent liabilities payable fror.r

.{@rued intcrest patable

Loan payable M&S Bank-cumnr
Loa! payable FDoT-cunent
Loan payable CRA-curent
Loan payable NRwA-curent
Sedal bonds payable-qirenl
Sonds payable lMHA-cunent

A.crued wags md conpensalion

Loan payable M&S Bmk
Loan payabl€ FDOT

Bonds payable FMHA
Total Liabiliries

NETASSETS
Invested in capiLl €ssers,

ToLl liabiliries ed ner Asets

CITY OF IIAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OFNETASSETS

Seplember 30, 2014

Business-Type Activities - Enlerprise Funds

Cemetery Water Solid WNte Sewer Torals 20t3

$ 44,045 $ 154,301 $ - $ 103,?19 $ 302,065 S t84,720- 18,864 t6,352 32,185 61,40t 61,281

- 973,242 70,584 448,628 1.492,454 906,775

- 213.134 $ 28,0J2 24t16; 2J2,%;

- 114.300 114,30; 14,30;_ 1,554,798 - 3,443,776 4,998,574 4,998,573_ 253,085 - 5,333,512 5,586,596 5,586,597- 7,992 - 62,796 ?0,788 52,598

_ 0,003,582) _ (5,564,3?3) (6.56?,955) (6,143,77r)

: : : ',tr'.111., itrl11l, itr:lll,
44.045 --- z.t1rln sar35 -- 4"00'6:tf --- 6ldffi ---fffi

ll,4l6

ll,4l6 t,701.982

t26,140
213,734

470,451

$ 2,t72,433

),321

32.678

54.257

54,257

_s__!!,235

41.600
18,810

128

t7,986

1,909,900
2,961,279

't,443,271

28.032
(386.18?)

r,045,11?

$ 4,006.396

t,9t2,529
25,22t-

9,431

66,685
n.253
t6.872
t7,724
16,633

12,000

41,600
18,810

1,788

17,986

134.978

83,213
l12,431

292,300
1,909.900

t,529,4t2
241.766

(r68.',124)

t,602,454

_!___!.rq9,$,

1,303,533

I,427-

9,431
60,461

10,698

16,872
11,201

9,766
n,300
46,240

1,281

t;789

l5 r,85 t
t00,937
56,r95

304,300
t,95?,500
4.112,38r

1,896,238

232,932
(243,'.125)

1,885,445

-!___1,2%9?6

927,043
20,198

1,570

66,685

t6,812
17,124

r6,633
12,000

333

134,978
83,213

|2,431
292,300

31.344
'7

942,726
5,016

'1,861

11,253

32,629

32,629

_J__l9J1t

-26-



Cemetery Water Solid Waste Sewer Totals 2013

OPERATING REVENUES

Utility revenue

   Sales 425$           235,263$       182,130$   343,425$         761,243$        788,307$      

   Reconnection fees -                 -                     -                 -                       -                      -                    

   Late fees -                 -                     -                 -                       -                      -                    

Total  utility revenue 425             235,263         182,130     343,425           761,243          788,307        

Other revenue -                 -                     -                 -                       -$                    761               

Total operating revenues 425             235,263         182,130     343,425           761,243          789,068        

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel 

   Regular salaries 7,218          22,233           3,457         58,120             91,027            78,922          

   Payroll tax 592             1,640             241            4,268               6,741              5,660            

   Retirement 448             1,336             207            3,489               5,481              4,428            

   Life and health insurance 2,156          7,761             1,725         18,541             30,183            22,495          

   Worker's compensation 324             1,518             445            1,179               3,465              2,914            

Total  Personnel Services 10,737        34,488           6,075         85,597             136,897          114,419        

   Depreciation and amortization -                 46,062           -                 378,122           424,184          406,226        

   Accounting and auditing -                 10,228           -                 -                       10,228            2,105            

   Contractual services -                 29,104           176,579     30,787             236,470          255,784        

   Communication -                 4,160             -                 3,003               7,163              4,909            

   Utility services 515             9,843             -                 38,955             49,313            41,315          

   Insurance -                 6,851             2,252         4,352               13,455            13,034          

   Repairs and maintenance 6,190             -                 9,686               15,876            42,365          

   Supplies 35               5,122             33              12,272             17,463            14,999          

   Publications & subscriptions -                 419                -                 371                  790                 1,043            

   Other current charges

       and obligations 673             21,000           -                 19,191             40,864            95,380          

Total operating expenses 1,223          138,979         178,864     496,739           815,805          877,160        

Total expenses 11,961        173,468         184,939     582,336           952,703          991,579        

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Fiscal year Ended September 30, 2014

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

-27-



CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF'REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CIiANGES IN NET ASSETS
Forthe Fiscal year Ended Septenber 30, 2014

BDsin€ss-Type Actiyilies - Enterprise Funds

Cemeiery

( ,536)

2013

(202,5tt)

626,728

t74,650

2,004

18.741

8n,tn

( 124,l5l )

operatirg pront (loss)

Non-operating revenues

F€deral wasle waler grant

State waste waler grant

Interesl on iDvestments

Totals

6t,796 (2,808) (238,911) (191,459)

wakr Solid Waste Sewer

27.t48

47;

29,518

(121,049)(48,535)

444

(72,5t3)

Gain (loss) on disposal ofassetr

Total non-opelarinc revenues

Debt seNic€ - inl€rest

Nel non-opemling rcvenue

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

(45,365) (91,531)

(1r,092)

43,721

(46,610)

15,186

455,266

(284,276) (282,990)

1,885,445

697,972

495.461

1.389,984

(2,808)

57,065

$ 32,629 $ 470,452 $ 54,257 $ 1,045,117 $ 1,602,455 $ 1.885,445

-28-



Cemetery Water Solid Waste Sewer Totals 2013

Cash flows from operating activities

   Cash received from customers 425$              235,146$       181,518$  278,027$        695,116$         767,298$      

   Cash payments to employees -                     (25,209)         (3,905)       -                      (29,114)            (78,922)        

   Cash payments for employee benefits -                     (9,279)           (2,170)       -                      (11,449)            (35,497)        

   Cash paid to vendors (1,846)           (148,154)       (175,444)   (54,043)           (379,487)          (416,132)      

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (1,421)           52,504           (0)              223,984          275,066           236,747        

Cash flows from capital and related 

  financing activities

   Interest paid on notes and  bonds payable -                     (48,535)         -                (72,513)           (121,049)          (124,151)      

   Capital grants -                     -                     -                -                       801,378        

   Principal paid on notes payable -                     (43,815)         -                (10,698)           (54,512)            (52,539)        

   Principal paid on bonds payable -                     (11,300)         -                (46,200)           (57,500)            (54,600)        

Net cash provided by (used for) capital

and related financing activities -                     (103,650)       -                (129,411)         (233,061)          570,088        

Cash flows from non-capital financing

  activities

   Loan proceeds -                     72,845           -                -                      72,845             -                   

   Rents and royalties -                     -                     -                27,148            27,148             18,737          

   Transfers in -                     -                     -                -                       -                   

Net cash provided by non-capital 

financing activities -                     72,845           -                27,148            99,993             18,737          

Cash flows from investing activities

   Net Purchases of fixed assets -                     -                (18,191)           (18,191)            (765,476)      

   Interest Income 444                1,926             -                -                      2,370               2,003            

Net cash provided (used) for investing activities 444                1,926             -                (18,191)           (15,821)            (763,473)      

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents (977)              23,626           (0)              103,531          126,178           62,099          

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 45,022           344,409         -                28,221            417,652           355,553        

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 44,045$         368,035$       (0)$            131,752$        543,830$         417,652$      

-                -                       

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to 

net cash provided by operating activities

   Operating income (loss) (11,536)         61,796           (2,808)       (238,911)         (191,459)          (202,507)      

Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

(loss) to net cash provided by operating

activities:

   Depreciation and amortization -                     46,062           -                378,122          424,184           406,226        

   (Increase) decrease in assets:

      Accounts receivable, net -                     (117)              (612)          (5,390)             (6,119)              11,594          

      Due from other funds -                     (120,274)       (148)          -                      (120,423)          (1,324,474)   

   Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

     Accounts payable (1,300)           (1,336)           -                4,030              1,394               (7,028)          

      Due to other funds 11,416           60,150           3,569        68,604            143,738           1,350,852     

      Customer deposits payable -                     6,224             -                      6,224               803               

      Accrued interest -                     -                     -                -                      -                       -                   

      Deferred Revenue -                     -                     -                17,529            17,529             1,281            

   Total adjustments 10,116           (9,291)           2,808        462,895          466,528           439,254        

Net cash provided (used) by operating actvities (1,421)$         52,504$         0$             223,984$        275,066$         236,747$      

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Fiscal year Ended September 30, 2014

-29-



CITY OF IIAWTHORM. FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SeDtember 30. 2014

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOI]NTING POLICIES

The financial statements ofthe City of HaMhorne (the City) have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (CAAP) as applied to gov€mmental units. The
Covemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental
accounting and financiai repofing principles. Pronouncaments of the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) issued after November 30, 1989, are not applied in the preparation ofthe
financial statements ofthe proprietary fund type in accordance with GASB Statement 20. The GASB
periodically updat€s its codification of the existing Governmental Accounting and Financial
Reporting Standards which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and
interpretations), constitutes GAAP for gov€mmental units.

In June 1999, the Gov€mmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) unanimously approved
Statement 34 - Basic Financial Statement and Managements Discussion and Analysis - for State and
Local Covernments. As provided by CASB 34, the City has €lected not to report retroactive
infrastructure improvements in its financial statements due to the fact that its anDual rev€nues are
Iess than ten million dollars. The City has implemented all other applicable provisions of this
Statement.

A. R€porting Entify - The City of Hawthorne, Florida is a municipal, political subdivision of the
State of Florida created under dle provisions of Laws of Florida, Chapter 8271 (1919). Accordingly,
it is controlled by the Florida Constitution and various Flofida Statutes as well as its own local
charter, ordinances and policies. It is governed by a City Commission of five members, all
individually elected, who select from among themselves one member to serve as Mayor/
Commissioner.

In evaluating how to define the City, for financial repofting purposes, management lras consider€d
all potential component units. Th€ d€cision to include a potential component unit in the reporting
entity was made by applying the criteda set forth in GAAP, The basic, but not the only, criterion for
including a potential component unit within the rcporting entity is the governing body's ability to
exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial
intefdependency. Other manifestations ofthe ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but
are not limited to, the selection ofgovening authority, the designation ofmanagement, the ability to
significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal matters. A second criterion used in
evaluating potential component units is the scope of public service. Application of this criterion
involves considering whether th€ activity b€nefits the government and/or its citizens, or whether the
activity is conducted within the geographic boundaries ofthe government and is generally available
to its citizens. A third criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion
from the rcporting entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the
government is able to etercise oversight responsibilities. Based upon the application ofthese criteria,
management detennined that the folloping component unit existed which should be included within
the reporting entity.
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINAI{CIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014

Cify of Hawthorne Community R€developm€nt Agency - This dependent special district was
established for the fostering of economic development within the downtown district, by City
Ordinance 94-1. The governing board is the City Commission which also establishes the agency's
budget. Because this component unit is part of the Ciry's operations, it has been reported on a
blended basis in thc City's goyornmental financial statements.

B. Mrasuroment Focus and Basis of Accounting - The basic financial statoments of the City are
comprised of the following:

Governmenfwide financial statements
Fund fi nancial statements
Notes to the financial statements

Gov€rtrment-wide Finatrcial Statements

Government-wide financial statements display information about the reporting gov€rnment as a
whole, except for its fiduciary activities. Those statements include separate columns for the
governmental and business-type activities of th€ City. For the most part, the effect of inter-fund
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revelues, are reported sepamtely from business-type
activities, which rcly, to a significant extent, on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary
government is repofed separately from any legally separate component unit for which the primary
government is fi nancially accountable.

Governmenlwide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and agency fund financial
statements. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchangeJike transactions are recognized when the exchange
takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from non-exchange
transactions are recognized in accordance with the relevant standards.

Program revenues include charges for services, special assessments, and payments made by parties
outside of the reporting government's citizenry if that money is restricted to a particular program.
Program revenues are netted with program expenses in the statement of activities to present the net
cost of each program.

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets arc capitalized as assets in the government-wide financial
statements, rather than reported as expenditure. Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as liabilities
in the govemment-wide financial statements, rather than as another financing source. Amounts paid
to reduce long-term indebtedness of the repofting government are reported as a reduction of the
relat€d liability, rather than as expenditures.

As a geneml rule the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial stat€ments. As applicable, the City also chooses to eliminate the indirect costs between
governm€ntal activities to avoid the "doubling up" effect.
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CITY OF EAWIEORNE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014

Fund Financial Statements

The underlying accounting system of the City is organized and operated on the basis of sepamte
funds, eaoh of which is considered to be a separate accounting €ntiry, The operations of eagh fund
are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that compdse its assets, liabilities,
fund equity, r€venues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate, Governmental resourc€s are
allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be
spent and the means by which spending activities are conholled.

Fund financial statements for the City's govemmental and proprietary funds are presented after the
governmentwide financial statements. These statements display information about major funds
individually, and non-major funds in the aggregate for governmental and enterprise funds.

Governmental Funds

Covernmental fund financial stateme0ts are reported using the curent fiDancial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis ofaccounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they ar€
collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities ofthe cunent period.
For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available ifthey are collected within 60 days of
the end ofthe current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incuffed,
as under accrual accounting. Franchise fees, licenses, sales taxes, gas taxes, operating and capital
grants, and interest associated with the cuffent fisoal period are all considered to be susceptible to
accrualand so have been recognized as revenues ofthe curent fiscal period. All other revenue items
are considered to be measurable only when cash is received by the City.

Under the current financial resources measurement focus, only current assets and curent liabilities
are generally included on the balance sheet. The reported fund balance is considered to be measure
of availabl€ spendable resources. Govemmental funds operatiDg statements prcsent incrcases
(r€venue and other financing sources) and deoreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net
cuffent assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and uses of available
spendable resources during a period.

Any non-current portions of long-tem receivables (special assessments) due to governmental funds
are repoded on their balance sheets in spite of their spending measurement focus.

Non-current portions of other long-term receivables are offset by fund balance reserve accounts.
Because of their spending measu.ement focus, expenditure recognition for governmental fund types
excludes amounts reprcsented by noncurrent liabilities. Since they do not affect net cuffent assets,
such long-term amounts are not recognized as governmental fund type expenditures or firnd
liabilities.
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Amounts gxpended to acquire capital assets are recorded as gxpenditues in the year that rcsources
were expendod, rath€r than as fund assets. The proceeds of long-t€m debt are recorded as another
financing source rather than as a fund liability. However, debt service expenditures, as well as

oxpenditurgs related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are re00rd9d only when
payment is due.

Dnterprise Funds

The City's Cemetery, Water, Solid Waste, and Sewer Enterprise Funds are proprietary funds. In the
fund financial statements, proprietary funds ale pres€nted using the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses are rccognized when the related goods
and services are delivered. In the fund financial statements, proprietary funds are presented using the
economic resources measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities (whether cuffent
or noncurent) associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets. Proprietary fund
type operating statements prcsent incr€ases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets.
The City preparcs its books and records in accordance with relevant standards.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for sewices, result from exchange transactions
associated with the priDcipal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each
party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non'operating revenues, such as subsidies,
taxes, and investment eami0gs, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the fund financial statements,
rather than repofed as expenditures, Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as a liability in the
fund financial statements, rather thalr as other financing sources. Amounts paid to reduce long-term
indebtedness are reported as a reduction ofthe related liabilities, rather than as an expense.

C. Basis of Accounting - The relevant standards set forth minimum criteria (percentage of the
assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures, expenses ofthe fund category and the governmentaland
enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds. The City has applied the relevant
standards for major fund determination.

Governmental Major FuDds: General Fund: The General Fund is the general operating
ftnd ofthe Cify. It is used to account for allfinancial resources, except those requir€d to be
accounted for in another fund.

Proprietary Major Furdsi The City maintains its utility services in the following
Enterprise Funds, each ofwhich is classified as a major fund:

. Water Fund

. Solid Waste Fund

. Sewer Fund
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Non-current Governm€ntal Assets/Liabilities: The relevant standards rcquirc non-curent
goyernmcntal assets, such as land and building. and noncunent governmental liabilities,
such as general obligation bonds and capital leases, be rcported in the govemmental
activities column in the government-wide statement ofnet assets.

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity

Cash and Investments - Cash includes amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term money
market investment accounts. Invesfnents, consisting of certificates of deposit, are stated at cost
which approximates market value. All such deposits and investments are insured and collateralized
as required by state law.

Cnsh Equival€nts - For purposes ofthe statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid
debt instruments with a maturity ofthree months or less to be cash equivalents. As ofSeptember 30,
2014, the City's cash consisted solely of checkin& savings and money market accounts; it has no
other cash equivalents.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - As applicable year-to-year, the City provides an allowance for
Enterprise Fund accounts receivable that may become uncollectible. At September 30,2014, there
were no amounts outstanding for more than 180 days; therefore no allowance for doubtful accounts
was reported. No other allowances for doubtful accounts are maintained since other firnd accounts
receivable are considercd collectible as rcported at September 30, 2014.

Rcccivables and Payabl€s - Activity between funds that arc representative of lending/bonowing
armngements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are refered to as "intefund
receivables/payables." Any residual balances outstandirg between the govemmental activities and
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "due to/from
other funds." All other receivables are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. Any
receivables in excess of 180 days would comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for
doubtful accounts. As ofthe balance sheet date. therc were no such accounts.

Restricted Ass€ts - Certain net assets ofthe City are classified as restricted assets on the statement
of net assets because their use is limited either by constitutional provisions or enabling legislation; or
by restrictions imposed externally by creditors, grantors, contributiots, or laws or regulations of
other governments. In a ftnd with both restricted and unr€stricted assets, qualified expenses are
considered to be paid first from resficted net assets and then fiom unresticted net assets.

Capital Ass€ts - Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infiashucture assets
(e.9., streets, bddges, rights-of-way, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental
or business-type activities column in the govemment-wide financial statements. Capital assets are
defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of$500 or more and an estimated useful

-34-



CITY OF HAWTIIORM, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014

Capital Assets - continu€d

lif€ in excess ofone year. Except for roads and bridges constucted prior to October l, 1981, assets
aro generally rocoded at histori9al cost. Roads and bridggs constructed prior to Octobgr 1, l98l are
genemlly not reportgd. Th9 costs of normal maintenanca and rgpairs that do not add to the value of
the asset or materially extend its useful life are Dot capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Intercst incured during the construction phase ofcapital assets ofbusiness-type activities is included
as part ofthe capitalized value ofthe assets constructed. Property, plant, and equipment ofthe City,
as well as component units, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Streets and related inflastructure

Years
10-50
5-t2

20-40

Capitalization of Inter€st - Interest related to bond issues are capitalized during the construchon
period. These costs are netted against applicable interest earnings on construction fund investments.
During the cuffent period, the City did not have any capitalized interest.

Deferred Revenues - Deferr€d revenues reported in government-wide finanoial statements represent
unearned revenues. The defe(ed revenues will be recognized as revenue in the fiscal year they are
eaned in accordance with the accrual basis ofaccounting. Defened revenues reported in proprietary
fund financial statements represent unearned revenues which arc measurable but not available and, in
accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting, are reported as defeared revenues.

Accrued Compensated Absences - The City accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave
when earned by the employee. The amount is estimated to be used in the following year.

Proprietary Activity Accounting and Financial Reporting - The City prepares its books and
records in accordance with relevant standards.
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NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GO\'ERNMENT-WIDE Ai\D I{JIID FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

A, Explatration of Differetrcos betw€€n the Govemmental Fund Balance Sheet atrd the
Gov€rnment-$ide Statement of N€t Assets.

"Total fund balances" of the City's governmental funds differs ftom "net assets" of governmental
activities reported in the statement ofnet assets. This difference primarily results from the long-term
economic focus of the statement of net assets versus the curent-financial-resources focus of the
governmental fund balance sheet.

Capital related items

When capital assets (property, plant, equipment) that are to be used in governmental activities arc
purchased or conshucted, the cost ofthese assets is reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
However, the statement of net assets includes those capital assets among the assets ofthe City as a
whole.

2014 2013

Cost ofcapital assets. $ 7,801,848 $ ?,830,380

Accumulated depreciation ( 1,439,639) (l,35'1,962)

Total Covernmental Capital Assets $ 6,362,479 $ 6472,113
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2014 2013

Total Governmental Capital Long-Term Statement of Statement of 

 Fund Related Items Debt Transactions Net Assets Net Assets

ASSETS

   Cash 646,790$                 -$                       -$                            646,790$            493,193$             

   Accounts receivable 12,273                     -                         -                              12,273                8,165                   

   Due from other funds 939,287                   -                         -                              939,287              853,067               

   Due from other governmental units 26,207                     -                         -                              26,207                32,154                 

   Note receivable 100,937                   -                         -                              100,937              118,137               

   Prepaid expenses 12,211                     -                         -                              12,211                -                          

   Capital assets - net -                              6,362,479          -                              6,362,479           6,472,417            

Total assets 1,737,705                6,362,479          -                              8,100,184           7,977,133            

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES

   Accounts payable 22,558                     -                         -                              22,558                15,535                 

   Due to other funds 519,212                   -                         -                              519,212              456,309               

   Due to other governmental units -                              -                         -                              -                          -                          

   Accrued compensated absences 22,162                     -                         -                              22,162                22,160                 

   Line of Credit 22,667                     -                         -                              22,667                36,084                 

   Notes payable- long term -                         -                          -                          

Total Liabilities 586,599                   -                         -                              586,599              530,088               

Fund Balance - Net Assets 1,151,106                6,362,479          -                              7,513,585           7,447,045            

Total liabilities and fund balance/net assets 1,737,705$              6,362,479$        -$                            8,100,184$         7,977,133$          

 September 30, 2014

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A. Explanation of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets
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NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERI{MENT-WIDE AND FIJND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

B, Explanatiotr of Difleretrc€s between the GovertrnenXal Fmd Operating Stat€metrls
aud the Statem€nt of Activities

The "net change in fund balances" for governmental funds of$121,420 differs from the "change in
net assets" for governmental activities $54,404 reported in the statement ofactivities. The differences
arise primarily from the long-term economic focus of the statement of activities ve$us the cu ent
financial resources focus of the governmental firnds. The effect of the differences is illustrat€d
below.

Capital related items

When capital assets that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased or constructed, the
resources expended for those assets are reported as expenditures in govemmental funds. However, in
the statement ofactivities, the costs ofthose assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. As a result, fund balances decrease by the amount of financial
resources expended, whereas net ass€ts decrease by the amount ofdepreciation expense charges for
the year.

Capital Outlay $ 2.236

Sale ofland (24,122)

Asset write-down (6,646)

Depreohtion expense (81106)

Difference $ (109938)

Long-term debt tmnsactions

Debt proceeds are reported as "other financing sources" in the govemmental fund, and have lhe
effect ofincreasing the fund balance. Debt proceeds increase the liabilities in the state ofnet assets

and do not result in an increase in net assets in the statement ofactivities.

Conversely, repayment of debt principal is reported as expenditures in the govemmental funds and,
thus, has the effect ofreducing fund balance because curent financial rcsources have been used.
However, the principal payments reduce the liabilities in the statement ofnet assets and do not result
in an expense in the slatement of activities. Debt principal payments made during the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2014 were $13,600.

Accrued comDensation

The City's employees have accrued wages payable as ofSeptember 30, 2014 in the amount of
$22,160. The amount includes vacation and sick leave that has been eam€d but not yet used by the
employees.
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

September 30, 2014 

NOTE 3. LEGAL COMPLIANCE-BUDGETS  

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 

statements:  

1. Prior to September 1, the City Manager develops a proposed operating budget for the fiscal 

year commencing the following October 1. The operating budget includes proposed 

expenditures and the means of financing them.  

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.  

3. Prior to September 30, the budget is legally enacted by the City Commission through 

passage of an ordinance.  

4. Any revision that alters the total expenditures of any fund or transfers budgeted amounts 

between departments within any fund must be approved by the City Commission.  

5. Budgets for all City funds are adopted on a basis consistent with relevant standards. 

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the City Commission. 

Individual amendments were not material in relation to the original appropriations which 

were amended.  The budget for the fiscal year 2013-2014 was adopted by the City 

Commission on September 23, 2013. 

 

NOTE 4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS  

Deposits: The City maintains all of its cash in checking, certificates of deposit and money market 

accounts at local banking institutions. At September 30, 2014, the carrying amount of the City’s 

bank balance was $1,190,622.  These balances were covered by federal depository insurance or by 

collateral held by the City’s custodial bank which is pledged to a state trust fund that provides 

security for amounts held in excess of FDIC insurance coverage in accordance with the Florida 

Security for Public Deposits Act, Chapter 280, Florida Statutes.  

Investments: Under state law, the City is allowed to invest surplus funds in guaranteed obligations of 

the U.S. government, interest bearing accounts of financial institutions which are legally secured, 

and the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund.  At year end, there were no such investments.  

NOTE 5. PROPERTY TAX REVENUES  

Taxable values for all property are established as of January 1, which is the date of lien, for the fiscal 

year starting October 1. Property tax revenues recognized for the 2013-2014 fiscal year were levied 

in October 2013. All taxes are due and payable on November 1 or as soon as the assessment is 

certified and delivered to the Tax Collector. Discounts are allowed for early payment at the rate of 

4% in November; 3% in December; 2% in January; and 1% in February. Taxes paid in March are 

without discount. All unpaid taxes become delinquent as of April 1. Virtually all unpaid taxes are 

collected via the sale of tax certificates on or prior to June 1; therefore, taxes receivable at fiscal 

year-end were an immaterial amount. 
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CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORJDA
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September 30, 2014

NOTE 6. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for lhe year end€d September 30, 2014 and 2013, was as follows:

2013 20t4
Beginning

Balance

Ending

BalanceAdditions D€letions

Govemmental Capilal assets:

Land

Buildings

Equipment and vehicl€s

Total capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation

Govemmental Activities:

Business-type Activitiesl

Land

Buildings

Improvemenls ofter than buildings

Equipment and vehicles

Total capital assets

Less accumulat€d depreciation

Business-type activities:

$ 4,645,050

1,136,579

t,841,351

207,394

7,830,380

(t,357,962) '236(88,052)

$ (24,122)

(6,646\

(30,768)

6,646

s 4,620,928

|,t36,579

t,841,357

202,984

7,801,848

(1,439,368)

$ 6,472,418 $ (85,816) $ (24,122) $ 6,362,480

114,300

5,219,082

5,306,088

52,598 l8,l9l

I14,300

5,279,O82

5,306,088

70,789

t0,752,068

(6.t43.77 t)
t8,l9l

424.184\

10,770,259

(6,567,955)

$ 4,608,297 $ (405,993) $ 4,202,304

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/prcgmms ofthe city as followsl

Govemmental activities:

General govemment

Public safety

Tmnsportation

Culture / recreation

Total deprecialion expens+governmental activities

Business-type activities:

water utiliry

Sewer utiliry

2014

14,964

3,240

30,232

39,616

46,062

359,754
Totaldepr€cialionexpense-business-typeactivities S 405,816
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NOTE 7. INTERFTJND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

The following is a schedule of inter-fiurd receivables and pa)"bles at Setptember 30, 2014 and 2013.

Fund

2014 2013

Interfund lnterfund

Receivables Receivables

2014

lnterfllnd

31,344

942726

\14t6

ml4
Transfers out

20],3

Interfund

General

Water

Solid waste

Sewer

Cemetery

s 939287 $ 853,067

973242 836,1s8

70,s84 70,617

448,628

Transfers in Transfers in

Payables Payables

$ sr92r2 $ 4s6309

927,043 850,084

27,956

42s,493

$ 213r,741 $ 1,7s9,842 $ 2431,741 $ t,7s9,842

The balance of$448,628 due to other funds from the Sewer Fund is not scheduled to be collected

in the subsequent year and is classified as a long-term receivable.

NOTE 8. INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers for the years ended September 30,2014 and 2013 consisted ofthe following:

2014 20t3
Fund

2013

Transfers out
General

Water

Sewer

30,000$ 30,000 s 30,000

$ 30,000 $ 30,000 _$.-_____rp!0

$ 30,000

$ 30,000

Transfers from the CRA flmd were made to allocate administrative services ofthe CRA
by the General Fund.
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NOTE 9. LONG Tf,RM Df,BT - BUSINESS-TI?E ACTII'ITIES

A. Water ReYenue Bonds Payabl€

Water Revenue bonds for expansion of the City's water system were sold during the fiscal year
ended September 30, 1991, in the amount of $450,000. Those bonds bear interest at the rate of
5.875% per annum, with different denominations maturing September l, 1997 through the year
2030. The revenues of the water system after deduction ofthe costs of operation and maintenance arc
pledged for payment ofthese bonds. In addition to the scheduled payments of interest and principal,
the City was required to deposit $2,990 per year into a reserve account until it reached a minimum
balance of $29,900, which has been achieved. Future debt seryice of the Water Revenue Bonds,
including interest, is as follows:

Septernber 30

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020 - 2024

2025 - 2029

2030

Principal

12,000

12,700

13,400

14,200

15,000

89,600

I19,200

28,200

$ 304.300

17,878

17,173

16,427

15,639

14,805

59,591

30,092

l s57

$ t73262

29,878

29,873

29,827

29,839

29,805

149,191

149,292

29,851

$ 417,562

Interest Total

B. Sew€r Revcnue Bonds Payable

Sewer revenue bonds for construction ofthe City's sewer system werc issued during the fiscal year
ended September 30, 1994, in th€ total amount of$1,262,500. These bonds bear interest at the rate
of 5% per annum, with different denominations maturing September 1, 1997 through the year 2033.
The revenues of the s€wer system after deduction of the costs of operation and maintenance are
pledged for payment of these bonds. In addition to the scheduled payments of interest and principal,
the City was required to deposit $7,494 per year into a reserve account until it reaches a minimum
balance of $74,905, which has been achieved. Futurc debt service and reserye requircments ofthe
Sewer Revenue Bonds, including interest are as follows:
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Sept€mber 30, 20r4

NOTE 9. LONG TERM DEBT - BUSINESS-TI?E ACTMTIES (Continu€d)

B. Sever Reyenue Bonds Payable - Contitrued

September 30 Principal lnterest Total

2015

2016

2011

2018

2019

2020 - 2024

2025 - 2029

29f00 45,225 74,825

31,100 43,745 74,845

32,700 42,190 74,890

34,300 40,s55 't4,855

36,000 38,840 74,840

208,800 165,340 374,t40
266,600 107,655 314,255

2030 - 2033 26s,400 33,990

$ 904,500 $ 517.540 1A22,040

C. Water and Server Revenu€ Bonds, Seri€s 2004

On Ianrary 24,2004, the City closed on the Water and Sewer Reveoue Bond, Series 2004 in the
amount of $1,187,300. These bonds, sold to the U.S. Department of Agriculture, werc utilized to
fully repay the bond antioipation notes. The bonds are payable in annual payments over 40 years at
average payments of$65,732, including interest at 4.5%. The bonds are payable solely from sewer
revenues. Future debt service of the Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds. includine interest are as
follows:

SeDtember 30 Principal Interest Total
18,000 47,385 65,385

19.000 46,575 65,5'75

20,000 4\n0 65J20
21,000 M,8m 65,820

n,000 43,875 65,875

125,000 203,625 328,62s

157,000 172,756 329;756

195.000 134.145 329,145

242,000 86,3s5 328,355

m40 - 2043 26,770 260,770

$ 1.053,000 $ 852.026 $ 1.905,026

2015

20t6
2017

2018

2019

2020 - 2024

2025- 2029

2130 - 2034

m35 - 2039



CITY OF HAWIEORNE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014

NOTE 9. LONG TERM DEBT - BUSIIIESS-TI?E ACTII'ITIES (Continued)

D. Promissory Note - Florida Departmetrt of Transportation

In November, 2007, the Ciry executed a promissory note to the Flo da Deparftlent of
Transportation in the amount of $253,085. The note caries no interest and is payable over
fifteen years in quart€rly installments of $4,218. The loan was made to reimburse the
Department for costs associated with City utility relocations on a state highway project. Payments
commenced October 15, 2008. Future debt service ofthis note is as follows:

Year SeDtember 30

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

t6,8n
t6,8n
t6,8n
t6,8n
16,8n

2020-243 67,489

$ 151"s49

E, Promissory Note-National Rural Water Association

In November,2009, dre City executed a promissory note to the National Ruml Water
Association in the amount of $100,000. The note caffies 3olo interest and is payable over ten years in
annual installments of $11,587. The loan was made to complete the Water Tower project and its
Ieverage requirements in compliance with the Crant agreement with the State of Florida. Payments
commenced December 1, 2009. Future debt seruice ofthis note is as follows:

SeDtember 30 Principal Interest Total
2015

2016

2017

2018

10,063

10,369

10,685

I1,0r0

t,365 11128

1,058 ll2'l
742 l112',7

416 11126

2019 14,069 346

:$.:::: ! _p------3sn $ 60,t22
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NOTE 9. LONG TERM DEBT - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES  (Continued) 

 F. NRWA Revolving Loan 

  

In April of 2014, the City executed a promissory note with the National Rural Water Association for 

an amount of $75,000. The note carries an interest of 3% and is payable over a ten year term in 

annual installments of $8,690. Payments commenced in June of 2014, and future debt service of this 

revolving loan is as follows: 

  

  
  

 

G. Promissory Note – City of Hawthorne Community Reinvestment Association 

 

In December, 2009, the City entered into an Interlocal Agreement in the amount of $177,000. The 

agreement carries 3% interest and is payable over ten years in annual installments of $20,510.  The 

agreement was made in order to complete the Water Tower project and its leverage requirements in 

compliance with the Grant agreement with the State of Florida. Future debt service of this agreement 

is as follows:  
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September 30 Principal Interest Total

2015 6,570               2,095               8,665           

2016 6,796               1,895               8,690           

2017 7,003               1,687               8,690           

2018 7,215               1,475               8,690           

2019 7,485               1,254               8,739           

2020 and future 37,800              11,442             49,242         

Total 72,869$            19,848$            92,717$        

September 30 Principal Interest Total 

2015             17,724 2,786          20,510          

2016             18,263 2,246          20,509          

2017             18,818 1,691          20,509          

2018             19,391 1,118          20,509          

2019             19,980 529            20,509          

2020               6,760 30              6,790            

Total  $       100,936 8,400$        109,336$      



CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SeDremb€r 30. 2014

NOTE 9. LONG TERM DEBT - BUSINESS-T}?f, ACTMTIES (Continued)

H. Note Payable - Merchants and Southern Bank

On March 8, 2012, the city obtained a term loan in the amount of$55,000 that was for the purpose of
replacing pump equipment for the Sewer Department. The loan has an interest rate of5.00% with 59
principaland interest payments of$1,039. The Ioan matures on March 8, 2017. A summary of
minimum debt requirements are as follows:

September 30

2015

20t6
2017

Total

Principal

11253

I1,838

6,t47

$ 29238

Interest Total

640

92

12,478

12,n8
6,239

$ 1.957 .$ 31.195

The following is a schedule ofchanges in proprietary fund long-term debt for the year
ended September 30, 2014:

Balance

20t3 Additions Retiren€nts

Balance

September30

2014

Due

Within

FDOT loan Payable

CRA Water Tower

NRWA lran

NotePayable

WaterRevenue Bonds

Sewer Revenue Bonds

\68,724

lt8,t38

65,961 75,000

39936

315,600

2,003,700

$ 2,7129s9 $ 75,000

(16872)

(17200)

01,897)

00,698)

01,300)

(462n0)

151,852

100,938

129,064

29,238

30d300

1,957,500

16,872

t1,1U

16,633

11,x3

I2,000

47.600

$ 014t60 $ 2,A2,893 g 12L082

Debt service payments made from the govemmental fund have been reco.ded as an interoompany
receivable.



CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2014

NOTE 10. LONG-TDRM DEBT - GOVERNMENTAI ACTIVITIES

A. Lin€ ofCredit- Merchants and Southen Bank

On September 24, 2008, the City obtained a line-of-credit flom Merchants and Southem Bank for a
maximum amount of $125,000. The revolving line has a demand feature and requires interest
payments monthly at a variable rate equal to the Prime interest index ofthe Wall Street Journal. The
city is making voluntary monthly principal and interest payments to rcduce the outstanding balance
on the line. At Sept€mber 30, 2014 the outstanding balance was $22,484.

The following is a schedule ofchanges in general long-term debt for the year ended September 30,
2014:

Balance

September 30

2013

Balance

September 30

2014

Due

Within

One YearAdditions Retirements

Line ofCredit (r3,600) 22,484

All debt service payments were budgeted and paid from General Fund revenue,

NOTE 11. INCOME FROM LEASED PROPERTY

The parcel of land acquired by the City for its sewer plant site is larger than the City presently needs

for its sewer plant operations. Therefore, the City has allowed two commercial entities to build radio
towers on the site in exchange for monthly rentals ofthe land.

The fiNt lease is fof a period often years expiring February 14, 2015, with a renewal option for an
additional ten years. It provides for $432 per month, with a 4yo increase every five years, and
provision to the City of seven digital pagers at no charge, to be replaced every ten years while the
lease is in effect.

The second lease is for a period offive years expiring March 31, 2016, with one rctewal option for
five years. It provides for $ I , I 39 per month, with a 12.5o/o increase with each lease renewal, and
three Motorola mobile phones given to the City with up to five hundred minutes of free use per
month.

The lessee of the s€cond lease is permitting a third pady to share its radio tower. The City holds a
conhact with that third party whereby the City received a one-time payment of $1,500 plus $325 per
month for as long as th€ third party continues its use ofthe radio tow€r.

36,084
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CITY OF IIAWTI{ORNEJ FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS

Sept€mber 30,2014

NOTE 11. INCOME FROM LEASED PROPERTY (Continued)

Assuming continuation ofthese leases, future minimum income is as follows:

Year Ending

September 30

2015 $ 27,s34

2016 27,749

20t7 29,671

2018 29,671

2019 29,671

AllFutue years 82,927

s n7223

NOTE 12. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

Effectiv€ January, 2000, the City adopled a deferred compensation plan for employees who had been
employed for at least six mondls. The plan is intended to provide retirement income and other
defened benefits to the City's employees in accordance with the provisions of Section 457 of the
Intemal Revenue Code of 1 986.

The City contributes 6% ofthe regular employee's base compensation and l0% ofthe compensation
of the City Manager to the plan; in addition to amounts elected by the employees to be defeffed from
their curent compensation. For the year ended September 30, 2014, the City contributed $23,?27 to
the plan.

The City utilizes ICMA Retirement Corporation (RC) as its plan administrator. All contributions,
whether from the City as employer or the City as agent for the employees, are remitt€d by the City to
the ICMA Retifement Tnrst (the Trust) for commingled investment with the retirement contributions
of other govemment employers. It is the responsibility of RC to maintain the plan in compliance
with the requirements for eligible defered compensation plans under Section 45? of the Internal
Revenue Code, and to act as investment adviser to the Trust. It is the City's responsibility to furnish
timely information needed by RC to fulfill its duties as plan adminisfator, and to remit the plan
contributions on a timely basis to the Trust.

Taxes and fees related to the Trust's activity are paid directly out ofthe Plan's assets. No part ofthe
corpus or income of the Trust may be reverted to the employer or be used for or diverted to any
purpose other than the exclusive benefit ofthe participating employees or their beneficia es.
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CITY OF HAWTEORNE, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30,2014

NOTE 13. CONTINGf,NT LIABILITIES

Amounts rcceiv€d or rgceivabl€ ftom grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencigs, principally the State and Fedeml govemments. Any disallowed claims, including amounts
aheady collected, may constitute a liabilify ofthe applicable tunds. The amount, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the
City expects such amounts, ifany, to be immaterial

NOTE 14. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
and injury or death on the job of all employees. These risks are primarily covered by commercial
insurance purchased from independent third parties. Seftled claims from these risks have not
exceeded commercial or workers' compensation insurance covemge for the past three years.

NOTE 15. SALf, OF RTAL ESTATE TO FDOT

In March of2014, the City sold a parcel of land ofapproximately 13 acres to the Floida Department
ofTransportation. The Sale price of$33,000 resulted in a gain of$8,878 on the sale of land, and the
City also received additional amount of$46,200 as damages from the Florida Deparhnent of
Transportation.

NOTE 17. SUBSf,QUENT EVENTS

In preparing these financial statements, the City has evaluated events and transactions for potential
r€cognition or disclosure through May I l, 20 I 5, the date the financial statements were available to
be issued.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



REVENUES

 Original 

Budgeted 

Amounts 

 Final 

Budgeted 

Amounts 

 Actual 

Amounts 

 Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive / 

(Negative) 

Taxes

   Ad valorem taxes 238,718$         238,718$       232,288        6,430$              

Sales  tax - local option gas tax 115,000           115,000         125,767        10,767              

Sales  tax - 1/2 cent tax 73,000             73,000           75,387          2,387                

Utility service taxes -                     

   Electricity 81,917             81,917           91,022          9,105                

   Telecommunications 48,000             48,000           42,741          (5,259)               

   Water 25,419             25,419           20,673          (4,746)               

Occupational tax 3,100               3,100             2,910            (190)                  

Total taxes 585,154           585,154         590,787        18,493              

Licenses and permits

   Alcoholic Beverage Licenses 979                  979                1,043            -

   Permits 300                  300                1,100            800                   

Total licenses and permits 1,279               1,279             2,143            -

Intergovernmental revenue

   State municipal revenue sharing 46,500             46,500           47,893          1,393                

   Hawthorne Redevelopment 61,124             61,124           98,095          36,971              

   LOC Grant and CRA Admn 30,000             30,000           65,250          

Total intergovernmental revenue 107,624           107,624         211,238        38,364              

Charges for Services

   Fire Assessments -                       -                     310               310                   

   Zoning Fees 1,900               1,900             1,766            (134)                  

   Traffic signal & lighting 19,450             19,450           19,450          (0)                      

   Recreation fees 2,135               2,135             48                 (2,088)               

Total charges for services 23,485             23,485           21,573          (1,911)               

Fines and forfeitures

   Fine revenue/sheriff 10,000             10,000           4,675            (5,325)               

   Code enforcement fines 1,500               1,500             1,075            (425)                  

Total fines and forfeitures 11,500             11,500           5,750            (5,750)               

Miscellaneous

   Interest 750                  750                4,853            4,103                

   Sale of Real Estate -                       -                     55,678          

   Other miscellaneous 2,300               2,300             8,647            6,347                

Total miscellaneous 3,050               3,050             69,178          10,450              

Total Revenues 732,092           732,092         900,669        59,645              

CITY OF HAWTHORNE, FLORIDA

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014
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CITY OF IIAWTEORI\E, FLORIDA

GENERAI FTJND
STATEMENT OF RXWNIJES, DGEI\DITIJRES AND

CIIANGES IN FUND BAI,ANCES - BI]DGET AI{D ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year EDded SeDtember 30.2014

EXPENDITURES
Ceneral govemment

Personnel seryices

Operating expenses

Grant Expense
*Debt Service

Total General Govemment

3t6,074
301,850

65,000

43,600
126,524

316,074
301,850

65,000

43,600
726,524

296,1s3
438,161

98,785

I,030
834,129

Original
Budgeted

Final
Budgeted

Vaiance with
Final Budget

Positive /
(Negative)

19,920
(136,3 | I )
(33,785)
42,570

(t07,605)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}

Int€rfund transleN in
Int€rfund transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Reconciling Items
Adjustment for capital assets

Long term liabilities
Depreciation Expense

Total Reconciling Items

Fund balance at beginning ofyear

Fund balance at €nd ofyear

30,000
(30,000)

30,000 30,000
(30,000) (30,000)

5,568 60,912

(28,532'

5,568 66,540

(28,s32)

Rt n<,

*Debt service in budget includes principal and interest payments.



CITY OF IIAWTEOR}{E, FLORIDA

DNTEMRISE FT'NDS
STATEMf,NT OF RXVf,NIJES, f,)GENDITIJRES AND

CHANGES IN FUN'D BA],ANCES - BI'DGET AND ACTUAI

For the Fiscal Year Erded September 30,2014

REVENUES
Water Fund

Charges for Services
Penalties

Disconnect /reconnect fees

Miscellaneous revenue
Total wat€r revenues

S€wer Fund
Sal€s ofsew€r services
Septage

Line installations
Grant Revenue

Land Lease Rents

Int€rest income
Misc, non - operating revenue

Total sewer revenues

Sanitation Fund

Sanitation income

Miscellaneous revenu€
Total sanitation revenues

Cemelery Fund

Interest income
Miscellaneous revenue

Total cemetery revenues

Total proprietary revenues

EXPENDITURES

Water Fund

PeNonnel services

Operating expenses

Debt Service- Interest
Total water expenditures

Original
Budgeted Budgeted

Amounts

Final Budget
Positive /
(Negative)

$ 11,318

(r4,000)
(4,500)
1,926

(3,2s6\

22t,945
14,000

4,500

s 221,94s
14,000

4,500

235,263

240,445 240.445
1,926

21',7,189

322,727

35,000

24,997

322,727

35,000

24,991

-

312,',75',7

30,668

21,148

(9,970)
(4,332-)

2,151

382,724 382,724 3',70,573

183,500 180,519 182,130 1,61I

186,000 t80,519 182,130 l,6l I

1,200 1,200 444 (756)
(2,s75)
(3,331)

3,000 3,000
4,200 4,200 869

37,847

96,000 (43,143)

-_____q!g.l6e _____!qj48 _____JnftJ_ ______92e27)

37,84',7

96,000

41,902 4',7,902

181,750

34,488

139,143

48,s35 (633)
222,t66 (40At1)
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CITY OF HAWTTIORNE, FLORJDA

PROPRJETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BAI,ANCES - BIJDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year End€d S€ptember 30, 2014

Sewer Fund

Personnel seflices
Operating expenses

Debt Service- Interest
Total sewer expenditures

Sanitation Fund
Personnel services

Operating expens€s

Total sanitation expenditures

Cemetery Fund

Personnel services

Opemting expenses

Total cemetery expenditures

Total expendiores

oTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interfund transfers in
Interfund Fansfers out

Total other lmancing sources (uset

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance at beginning ofyear

Fund balance at end ofyear

s,999 5,999 6,075
183,000 183,000 178,864
188.999 188,999 184.939

12,461 12,461

90,039
r49,500
12,504

3t2,043

697,303

90,039

149,500

72,504
312,043

697,303

85,597

496,s76

12,513
654,686

Original
Budg€ted

Final
Budgeted

Amounts
Actual

Amounts

Final Budget
Positive /

(Negative)

4442
(34',7,076)

(e)
(342,642)

('76)

4,136
4,136

t,724
8172,050 2,050

14,511 l4,5ll

t0J37
1,233

tt,97 |

t,073,761 (3?8,107)

817

111,86? 106,386 (283,000) (389,386)

1,885,445 49,',785

8 1,947,s27 $ t,942,046 $ 1,602,445 $ (339,601)



COMPLIANCE SECTION
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON TNTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE wlTH GOVERNMENT AUDITTNG STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and City Commissionels
City of Hawthome, Flodda

We have audited the basic financial statements of the govemmental aotivities, the business_type
activities, and the aggregate remaining fund information oathe City of Hawthorne, Florida, as ofa;d
for the year ended September 30,2014, which collectively comprise the City ofHawthome, Florida,s
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated May I 0, 20 I 5. We conducled our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally acoepted in the United States ofAmerica anct
the standards appficable to financial audits.containedir. Govetument Axdiling Standards, issvedby
the Comptroller Ceneral ofthe United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reoortinq

In pianning and performing our audit, we considered internal control over financial leDonlns as a
bash for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions o,-n the
financial statements but not for the purpose ofexpressing our opinion on the effectiveness ofthe City
ofHawthome, Florida's internal control over finanoial reporting. Accordingly we do not express an
opinion onthe effectiveness ofthe City,s internalcontrol over financial rcporting.

A deficiency in intemal control exists whed the design or operation of a control does not allow
manag€ment or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent oi
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis, A naterial weakness is a deficiincy or a
combination of deficiencies in intemal control such that there is a reasonable possibility-that a
material rnisstatement of the City's financial statements will not be prevented or delected and
corrected on a timely basis.

Oul considemtion of intemal control over financial reporting was foa the limited purpose described
in the first pangraph of this section and would was not designed to identifj/ ;I deficieocies in
intemal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. We did not identiry any deficiencies in intemal contr;l that we consider to be
material weakrcsses, as defined above. However, we identified certain deliciencies in internal
control over financial repofting, described in the accompanying schedule offindings and responses
that we consider to be signifrcant deficiencies in intemal conkol over financiil reDoruns. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination ofdeficiencies, in intemal cantrol that i-s less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
govemanc€.

4432 NW 23rd Av6., Suit€ 8 G.inosviltr F! 32606 35233&1001 tel 352-$6482 fd w$xton.n&chnott.@m



Complianoe and Other Matters

As part ofobtaining reasonabls assumuce aboutvhetllertlo Cfty ofHawthorne, Florida's furancial
stateDr€nts a&-free ofnatedal misstatemgnt,lvo perfonDgd tests ofils compliaoge with ce ain
prcvisions of la\y, regulations, contacts and grant a$eements, noncomplisDce $,ith which
could haye a direct and matedal eff€ot on the determination of financial' st4tement amounrs,
How€v€r, ploviding an epinioo on compliance with those provisions was not aD objgctive of our
audir, and accordingly, w9 do not express such an opinion. The r€suir$ of our tisS disctosed
inslanc€s of troncompliatc,€ or other mattors $at arc r€quired to b9 r9p0rt9d undgr Covgmngnt
Auditing St!trdaldr and lvhich ar€ described in tho aacompanying ineaub o7 Trdings ana
fespo,|isJ,

The City of HaMlrome, Florida's responsc to the findings ideltified in otu.audir is descdbed in the
accom!gJlyitrg schedule of frndings and respowes, We did not audit the City,s rospoirse !nd,
Rccordrngty, we cxprcss no opinion on it.

This.repofi is_inteMed solely for tho iffonmtion atrd uso ofmanagomenq City CommissioD, ol|le$
within the entify and fedcml awarding agencies or pass-through eDtitios and is;lot iltonded to be and
should not bc uscd by nnyone other thafi rhssc spccified parties.

-JldoLr Jd-r'a-t-
Sexton & Schnoll
Certifi ed Public Accountalts
May ll,20l5
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Management L€tter

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members ofthe City Commission
City of Hawthorne Florida

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Hawthome, Florida (the CiW) as of and
for the year ended September 30, 2014 and have issued oul repon rhereon dateA Vt'av f f, iOIS.

We have issued our Independent Auditof's Report and Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Ofher Matters based on an Audit of Financial Srarements
Performed in Accordance with Govemmeht Auditing Standards, dated May 15,2013. Disclosures
in those reports and sohedules, should be considered in conjunction with thii management lener.

We conducted our audit in acoordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
Stafes.o-f America, and Govennent Auditihg Stand;rds issued ty tte C6mptroiler General of the
United Siates. Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with th; pfovisions of Chapter
10,5^50, Rules of the Auditor Generul, ethich eovefis the conduct of looal govemmental entity audits
pe.Iomed in lhe Srate ofFlorida and require that the following be addresset in this letter:

Currcnt Year Findingsl

I . In the enterprise funds, there are old balances ftom customers dating more than I g0 days
old. Although the individual amounts are immaterial for an audit, a-proper accounlng
procedure is to accrue bad debt expense based on experience ofcollectability

Response: Old halances tglll be revieweat by uanagetuet t awl rcceruedfor colleclion
on a learl! baslt, A rccohmendalion to nrite off accounls that are deetfled
uncollectable wlll be presented to the Confilstiofor approval, Ir, 20t4 Revislonr to the
water regahtions o fuance give management a better method ofcottectlrrg old alebt

2. The accruals related to Payroll are old and have not been adjusted for cunont amounts.
These accruals should be reviewed for adequacy at the year-end and adjusted to reflect
proper balances.

Respotse: fianagement will take the dudited accruql ahount and reve$e pfior lear
accntak oh an an ual biqs aad adiast the accrualJor cwtentyear amonnts

This letter includes the following infonnation, which is not included in the aforementioned auditors,
reports or schedules.

. Section 10.554(lxi)1 Rules of the Aualitor Ceneral, rcquires that we determine
whelher or nol conective aclions have been taken ro addess {jndinqs and
recommendations made in the preceding. annual financial rcport. We are pte-ased to
report lhat all prior year findings and recommendations listed in the Drevious annual
financial repon have been corrected in the current year
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. Section 10.554(lxi)2 Rules of the A ditor Genelat, requires our audit to inolude a
review of the provisions of Section 218.415, Florid; Shtutes, regarding the
Investrnent of Public Funds. The City complied with Section 219.415, Flo da
.ttdt tes, regarding the investrnent ofpublic funds.

. Section 10.554(lxi)3 Rules ofthe Auditor General, requires that we address in the
management lettef any recommendations to improve finatcial managem€nt,
Accordingly we recommend that accounting staf pay close attention to reviewing
old balances and making apFopriate accounting adjustrnents.

r Seotion 10.554(1)(i)4 tuies of the A ditor ceneral, requircs that we adahess
violations of Fovisions ofcontracts or grant agreemenfs, fiaud, illegal ads, or abuse
the have an efrect on the d€termination of fmancial statenents that is less than
rnaterial but more than inconsequential. In connection with our audit, we did not
have any such findings.

r Section 10,554(lxi)5 Rules of the Auditor Gsnela/, provides that the auditor may,
based on professional judgment, report the following matters that have an
inconsequential effect on finanoial statements, considering both qualitative and
qualitative factors: (l) violations of provisions of conhacE or grant agreemenu,
iljegal acts, or abuse, and (2) conhol deficiencies that arc not sishifioant
deficiencies. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findinp!.

r Seotion 10,554(l)(i)6 Rules ofthe Auditol Genelal, requires that the name or official
title and legal authority for the primary government and each component unit ofthe
reporting entity be disclosed in this management letter, unless disolosed in the notes
to the financial statements. The annual financial audit report for the City of
Hawthone includes the accounts and tmnsactions of its Communiry Redevelopment
Agency, which is considered a blended component unit pursuanr to Chapter i63 of
the Florida Statutes.

. Section 10.554(lxi)7(a) Rxles o/ the Auditor General, rcqvires a statement to be
included as to whe$er or not the local govemment entity has met one or more ofthe
oonditions desoribed in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statues, and identification ofthe
specific oonditions met. The City rcported no conditions described in Section
218.503(1), Florida Statutes that result in a financial emergency.

r Section 10.554(lxi)7(b) Rules of the Aditor cerelal, requires that we determine
whether the annual financial report for the City for the fiscal year ended September
30,2013, filed with the Flodda Departrnent ofFinancial Sewices pursuant to Section
218.32(l)(a),Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the annual fi;ancial audit report
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013. We have determined that these reporB
ate in agreement.

. Pursuant to Section 10.554(1)(i)7(c) and 10,556(1) Rules of the Aaditor ceheral,we
applied finanoial condition assessment procedures. l! is management.s responsibility
fo monitor the City,s finaicial condilion, and our financial coidition assesiment was
based in part on representation made by management and the review of financial
infornalion provided lo ns by same.

Our audit did not disclose any further items that would be required to be rcported under the Rrler o/
the Auditor ceneruL ChaDter 10,554,
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Our managemenl lener is intended solely for the information and use ofthe Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House ofRepresentatives. the Florida
Auditorceneml, Federal and other granting agencies and applicable management, and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyons other than ,hese specified-parties.

Rulal Economic and Commlnity Development Requirements - We are providing the following
additional informafion rclative to our examination of thg finanoial statements of the Citv o?
HaMhorne, Florid4 for the year ended September 30, 2014, as provided in the audit
requirements for USDA-Rural Development borowers.

r Generally accepted auditing procedues were performed in this audit. Financial statements have been prepared on a comparative basisI lntemal control was evaluated and is discussed in the prior sections ofthis audit report! Accounting rccords and physioal conlrol over assets were adequater The acoounting rccords of the City have been adjusted to agree with the audited financial
stalemeffs

. The Ciry's funds are in banking institutions that are eualified public Depositodes as
described in Chapter 280 ofthe Florida Statues.. A summary ofthe Cily's insurance covemge is shown in the annual report to USDA-Rual
Development.

. The City is exempt from Federal Incone Tax
' We found nothing to indicate that finanoial compliance with loan agreements haal not

occuned.
. As !f September 30, 2014, the City of Hawthorne had sufficient rest.icted cash to comply

with its Bond Covenants,

CONCLUSION

We have reviewed each of our specific findings with appropriate officials or employees and have
provided them with documentation as requested. We very much enjoyed thi challenges and
expeiences 

_associated with this year,s audit of the City. We wish to thank Ellen Vauae, City
Managea and stallfor the assistance and courtesy afforded us.

)lv+^rJu.o^l--
Sexton & Schnoll
Certifi ed Public Accountants
May I l, 2015
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Management Response to Findings 

 

To the Mayor and  

Members of the City Commission  

City of Hawthorne, Florida  

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Hawthorne, Florida (the City) as of 

and for the year ended September 30, 2014 and have issued our report thereon dated May 11, 

2015, which was unqualified.    

We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report and Report on Internal Control over Financial 

Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, dated May 15, 2013.  

Disclosures in these reports, if any, should be considered in conjunction with this management 

letter.    

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America, and Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the 

United States.  Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with the provisions of 

Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, which govern the conduct of local governmental 

entity audits performed in the State of Florida and require that the following be addressed in this 

letter:   

Current Year Findings: 

 
2014-1:  In the enterprise funds, there are old balances from customers dating more than 

180 days old. Although the individual amounts are immaterial for an audit, a proper 

accounting procedure is to accrue bad debt expense based on experience of collectability.  

                

 Response: Old balances will be reviewed by management and reserved for collection 

on a yearly basis.  A recommendation to write off accounts that are deemed 

uncollectable will be presented to the Commission for approval.  In 2014 Revisions to 

the water regulations ordinance give management a better method of collecting old 

debts. . 

 

2014-2: The accruals related to Payroll are old and have not been adjusted for current 

amounts. These accruals should be reviewed for adequacy at the year-end and adjusted to 

reflect proper balances.  

  

Response:  Management will take the audited accrual amount and reverse prior year 

accruals on an annual bias and adjust the accrual for current year amounts. 

 

All prior year findings have been substantially cleared.  
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